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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2010.

Against the background of lackluster economic conditions preceded by the global financial
crisis and economic downturn, our Group has delivered impressive results for the 2010
Financial Year. We delivered on our financial commitments and continued to pursue new long-
term growth opportunities while reducing costs. The Group’s ability to lead such a significant
performance, particularly in challenging times, is a testament to its capabilities and excellence.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The global economy was overshadowed by continued instability and uncertainty in the
beginning of 2009, when we started the financial year under review. Amidst intensified liquidity
issues and credit crunch, we saw stabilisation programs which included drastic macroeconomic
measures together with massive easing policies implemented by governments around the
world. Although by mid 2009, the global economy started to pull out of the recession and
there were tentative signs of gradual stabilisation and improvements, a sustained recovery was
still very much in question. Against this economic backdrop, the Group managed to strengthen
its core competencies and achieved growths in revenue and sales volume, thanks to the
Group's sound financial position and operational efficiency in times of difficulties.

I 'am delighted to inform you that during the financial year under review, the Group’s gross
profit for the year and the net profit attributable to equity holders amounted to HK$1,221.8
million and HK$803.2 million respectively. Earnings per share was HK$0.56, compared to
HK$0.26 in the previous financial year representing an increase of |15.4%.

During the 2010 Financial Year, our overall capacity increased slightly over 10% year-on-year.
Sales volume of the Group reached 195.8 million pounds, a growth of 24.6% compared to
[57.2 million pounds in the previous year.

The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend of HKI7 cents per share. Together with
an interim dividend of HKI3 cents per share paid on 8 January 2010 and a special dividend of
HK 22 cents per share paid on 25 February 2010, the total dividends for the financial year will
be HK52 cents per share.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In the 2010 Financial Year, we continued to see the textile industry going through waves of
consolidation, as industry participants faced stiff competition in a still unfavorable economic
environment. With the Group’s sound financial position, we were able to leverage on our core
competency to achieve substantial growth.

As the economic climate of US and EU markets remained sluggish, we continued the process
of geographic diversification by focusing on market expansion opportunities in Japan and
China, while maintaining strong relationships with our existing customers. Growth in sales
volume to the Japanese market was very satisfactory. On China's domestic market front, the
Group is also making good progress through our active pursuit in sales expansion and market
penetration. We will continue to increase our efforts to tap into the fast-growing Chinese
market.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Contd)

We are making satisfactory progress in the Bangladesh joint venture. The land for our
integrated fabric and garment factory was acquired and the design of the factory is underway.
However, to speed up our learning curve, the joint venture leased an industrial building and
started the garment operation in early 2010. Despite the small operating scale, the setup
enables us an early start for familiarising the local business practice and training our workers.

In our constant effort to curtail high operating cost, the Group successfully adopted efficient
working capital management and stringent cost containment measures during the year. We
made headway on improving our operational efficiency through technological innovations and
regular upgrades of equipment in the existing production plants.

Underlying all of our achievements in the 2010 Financial Year was also our determined
commitment to quality of the products and the environment. We continued to adhere to the
highest quality and standards across all of our operating units and believe these are essential
to delivering long-term shareholder value. Our achievements in integrating environment best
practices in the manufacturing process are widely recognised by leading environment
accreditation organisations. In 2009, the Panyu plant was accredited Environmentally
Trustworthy Enterprise — Green Label RIR#MERE — 4 BFETR) by Guangdong
Environmental Protection Bureau (EHREIREIRER) .The Group was also awarded Hang
Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards (B4 %k = BIRIR#E) as well as Hang Seng
Pearl River Delta Environmental Category Awards - Air Emissions and Noise Abatement (18
ER=ARREE R -BEREMRERZER) jointly issued by the Federation of Hong
Kong Industries (&4 T4 &) and Hang Seng Bank in 2009, recognising its efforts in
taking steps to enhance its environmental contributions. We are truly honored to receive
these awards.

OUTLOOK

Let me now share with you the outlook for the coming year. It is anticipated that the Group's
business will benefit by the economic growth momentum of China and the gradual recovery
of the international economy in the coming vear. | would, however, like to add a note of
cautiousness though, on the rise of commodity prices and production costs, RMB appreciation
and the uncertainty of a long-term stable and vibrant economic growth. All this guard us
against any over-optimism.

Indeed, the prevailing tough operating environment will continue to exert pressures on
industry participants and poised for further industry consolidation. In view of this, the Group
will continue to enhance its competitive edges to grasp the opportunities arising from this
challenge. We will also strive to implement further stringent cost control measures and
streamline existing operations and structures to further enhance operational efficiency and
profit margin.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to our loyal customers,
business partners and suppliers for their continuing commitment to the Group.

To my fellow colleagues on the Board, | would like to express my gratitude for your teamwork
and support.

The Group's performance is also reflective of the hard work of our staff and | would like to
convey my thanks to our employees for their achievement in delivering the excellent

performance.

Last but not least, to our shareholders, | am grateful for your loyal support and confidence in
the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 9 July 2010
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

As we started the 2010 Financial Year, the world was full of uncertainty and the prospects for
a significant recovery were still in doubt. In this setting, we sharpened our focus on market
expansion opportunities in Japan and China markets, while further expanding the Group's
production capacities carefully. Leveraging our competitive edges and strong financial position,
we consolidated our position in the market and improved our operational efficiency in the
financial year under review. These concurrent and cohesive efforts led the Group to achieve a
satisfactory performance in terms of revenue and net profits in one of the most challenging
periods of the world economy.

For the year under review, the Group’s revenue increased 24.3% to HK$5,883.4 million, (2009:
HK$4,734.8 million), thanks to the increased production capacity and high utilisation rate.
Despite the difficult environment, total sales volume increased by 24.6% to 195.8 million
pounds (2009: 157.2 million pounds) and average selling price maintained at HK$30.! per
pound (2009: HK$30.1 per pound) .

Operating profit reached HK$969.1 million (2009: HK$426.1 million) and the gross profit
stood at HK$1,221.8 million (2009: HK$687.0 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
127.4% and 77.8% respectively.

For the year under review, net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$803.2 million, which represents an outstanding increase of |13.3% over the previous year
of HK$376.5 million. Net profit margin rose to 13.7% (2009: 8.0%). Earnings per share was
HK$0.56 (2009: HK$0.26).

The Group's distribution and selling expenses decreased 9.5% from HK$149.9 million in the
previous year to HK$135.7 million. The decrease is mainly due to the reduction in customer’s
claims during the 2010 Financial Year.

General and administrative expenses were HK$184.2 million (2009: HK$170.6 million),
representing an increase of 8.0% from last year. As a percentage of total revenue, general and
administrative expenses dropped from 3.6% to 3.1% during the 2010 Financial Year. The Group
maintained an efficient cost structure during the year and will continue to manage its cost in a
proactive manner.

Customers, Production Plants and Expansion Strategy

During the year under review, the US and EU markets showed some tentative signs of
stablisation and improvement, but the overall consumer demand is still weak. Together with the
credit crunch and the continued tightening of environmental regulations by the Chinese
government, a wave of industry consolidation benefits stronger players.

The Group was successful in confronting the challenges by sharpening its competitive edge.
Leveraging on its core competencies, including its sound financial standing, efficient production
facilities, and strong capability to produce value-added products, the Group has recalibrated
itself and is now on a much stronger and solid footing.

Our strong relationship with a wide portfolio of key brand owners, including Maidenform,
Marks & Spencer, Triumph, UNIQLO, VF Intimates and Victoria's Secret, enables the Group to
continue to grow during testing times. The Group'’s top five customers and brand owners
contributed approximately 47.6% and 50.9% to our total revenue versus 39.5% and 41.1% of
last year.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

In line with the Group's growth strategy and continued effort to further establish its global
market presence, a well-executed market expansion plan helped us to further consolidate our
position in Japan and China.

The manufacturing facility of the Bangladesh joint venture is progressing satisfactorily. The land
for our integrated fabric and garment factory was acquired and the design of the factory is
underway. At the same time, the joint venture leased an industrial building and started the
garment operation early this year. Despite the small operating scale, the setup enables us an
early start for familiarising the local business practice and training our workers. The joint
venture will help the Group to take full advantage of Bangladesh’s access to European markets
and Japan with no tariffs and quotas barriers, its cost effective production capacity and low
operating costs. The cornerstone was laid for growth in the future.

The Group also continued to improve its operational efficiency through innovative
technological solutions and regular upgrades of equipment in the existing production plants in
Sri Lanka and Panyu, China. The program significantly helped to optimise production capacity,
enhance operational efficiency and lower production cost, while enabling considerable
flexibility with opportunities for growth.

Our Group is committed to sustainability and corporate social responsibility. The Group also
has developed and implemented environmentally compatible technologies and techniques to
minimise environmental footprint in the manufacturing processes. The safety of employees and
the local population is also our priority concern. The Group’s environmental efforts are widely
recognised by leading environment accreditation organisations. In 2009, the Panyu plant was
accredited Environmentally Trustworthy Enterprise — Green Label (BRIR 5 {5 b 3% — & 8 1%
~) by Guangdong Environmental Protection Bureau (R & RIE/R#EF) and received the
Cleaner Production Corporation (/524 E &%) recognition from the Economic and Trade
Commission of Guangdong Province (ER B HE 5% 8&) and Guangdong Bureau of
Science and Technology (B & RIZ K ITE). The Group was also awarded Hang Seng Pearl
River Delta Environmental Awards (B4 %k = AIRIR ) as well as Hang Seng Pearl River
Delta Environmental Category Awards - Air Emissions and Noise Abatement (1B 2k = AR
RIEE - ERIEB KR EER) jointly issued by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
(BATHEE) and Hang Seng Bank in 2009, recognising its efforts in taking steps to
enhance its environmental contributions.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Information

As at 31 March 2010, our bank and cash balances and time deposits totaled HK$689.4 million
(2009: HK$1,431.7 million), including HK$313.1 million, the equivalent of HK$223.2 million in
US$, the equivalent of HK$151.0 million in Renminbi and the equivalent of HK$2.1 million in
other currencies. The bank and cash balances and time deposits are to finance the Group’s
working capital and capital expenditure plans. The loans are mostly short-term, principally
ranging from 2 weeks to 3 months, and are mainly denominated in US dollars.

For the 2010 Financial Year, the Group's total assets amounted to HK$4,656.3 million (2009:
HK$4,385.5 million), representing an increase of 6.2%. Non-current assets and current assets
were HK$1,738.7 million and HK$2,917.6 million respectively. The above assets were financed
by current liabilities of HK$1,318.7 million, non-current liabilities of HK$17.7 million, minority
interests of HK$65.7 million and equity attributable to shareholders of HK$3,254.2 million.The
current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current assets over current liabilities) was 2.2
(2009: 2.6). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total debts (including current and non-current
borrowings and finance lease obligations) to total capital, was 2% (2009: 13%). The reduction in
gearing was attributable mainly to a reduction in borrowings. As at 31 March 2010, the Group
was in a net cash position of HK$615.0 million (31 March 2009: HK$1,026.1 million).

The Group adopted measures and fine-tuned its capital expenditure in response to the
market demand. During the year under review, total capital expenditure rose 19.1% to
HK$252.3 million (2009: HK$211.8 million), which was mainly used to purchase plant and
machinery, and on construction projects of the Panyu Plant and others.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar and Renminbi. The Group manages its foreign exchange
risks by performing regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The Group
will hedge against the exposure and reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2010, the Group's bank loans of HK$24.6 million (2009: HK$70.9 million)
were secured by certain property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of HK$86.4
million (2009: HK$92.9 million) and inventories with net realisable value of HK$77.6 million
(2009: HK$78.0 million).
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Contd)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had a total of 8,064 full-time employees (2009: 7,373), 6,781
of whom were based in China, |,159 in Sri Lanka, |13 in Hong Kong and || in other regions.
There is no significant change in the Group's remuneration policy. The Group's remuneration
package for its employees includes salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits, based
on employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The Group will continue to provide regular
training and competitive remuneration packages to its staff. The Group also provides additional
benefits to its employees, such as subsidised accommodation and meals for workers at the
production facilities, and accident and medical insurance.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme. Pursuant to the scheme, the Company
granted options to eligible employees. The amortised fair value of share options granted, which
totaled approximately HK$6.8 million was charged to the income statement for the 2010
Financial Year (2009: HK$8.9 million).

Dividends

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK17 cents (2009: HK12 cents) per share for
the 2010 Financial Year. Together with an interim dividend of HKI3 cents (2009: HK3 cents)
per share and the special dividend of HK22 cents (2009: Nil) per share, the total dividend for
the 2010 Financial Year amounts to HK52 cents (2009: HKI5 cents) per share. The final
dividend, if approved by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, will be paid in September
2010.

Outlook and Prospect

To firmly enhance our ability to handle future growth, we initiated tighter inventory
management and control in the 2010 Financial Year. The management and processes of
purchases, production, inventory control and logistics were regularly evaluated. The result
proved to be beneficial, as the Group's overall production efficiency improved.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to assess the economic environment and will maintain
a cautiously optimistic approach as overall consumer demand is yet to fully recover.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EENSREEASHN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 60, is an executive Director and Chairman and a founder of our
Group. Mr Wan is responsible for production of the products and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies of the Group. Mr.Wan has over 37 years of
experience in the textile industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Chemical
Engineering from Taiwan National Cheng Kung University. Mr. Wan joined the Group in 1997
and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. TSANG Kang Po, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Vice Chairman and a founder
of our Group. Mr. Tsang is responsible for sales and marketing and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies for the Group. Mr. Tsang has over 31 years
of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Tsang obtained a MBA degree from The Open
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Science in Business Economics from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr.Tsang joined the Group in 1997 and was appointed as a Director
in 2004. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Wing Tak, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of our
Company. Mr. Lam is responsible for sales and marketing and the formulation of the overall
corporate direction and business strategies for the Group. Mr. Lam has over 35 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lam obtained a MBA degree from The University of
Macau and a Bachelor of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Lam is a member of Board of Trustee of New Asia College, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Mr: Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Dr. LAM King Man, aged 54, is an executive Director. Dr. Lam is responsible for overseeing
manufacturing, research and development. Dr. Lam has over 28 years of experience in the
textile, garment, dyeing and finishing industry. Dr. Lam obtained a Ph.D. degree from the
Postgraduate School of Colour Chemistry and Colour Technology at the University of
Bradford, United Kingdom and a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He is a Chartered Colourist and a Fellow of The Society of Dyers and Colourists,
United Kingdom. Dr. Lam joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004.
He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Hing Chau, Leon, aged 52, is an executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from
the University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA Australia, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Lam also holds Master's degrees
in Business Administration, Information Systems, Applied Finance and Electronic Commerce.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the executive director, vice president and chief financial
officer of CK Life Sciences Int'l (Holdings) Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Lam joined the Group in 2005 and was appointed as a Director in 2009 and company
secretary in 2010.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EERSNREEBAEGBN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung, aged 74, is a non-executive Director and a founder of the Group. Mr.
Choi co-founded our Group in 1997 and has been the chairman of the Group since its
inception until 2005. Mr. Choi is the emeritus chairman of the Company and a director of
several subsidiaries of the Group. He has approximately 42 years of experience in the textile
industry. Mr Choi was educated in the ZEFIET A + BE R (School of Architecture,
South China University of Technology) and is a Honorary Professor of the University. He is
also a Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou City and Jiangmen City. Mr. Choi was appointed as a
Director in 2004.

Mr. IP Ping Im, aged 73, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder and senior partner of
our Group. Mr. Ip has over 33 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Ip was appointed
as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 62, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lau has over 33 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology from
the Hong Kong Technical College. He is a member of the General Committee of Federation of
Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lau was appointed as a non-executive Director in 2007. He is also a
director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director. He is
currently the executive chairman of Café de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in planning and
management. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings
Limited since 1993 and Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited since 2006 and a non-executive
director of Tao Heung Holdings Limited in 2007, all three companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree
in City Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in
Business Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University. He
is currently an executive committee member of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association, the general committee member of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, an
appointed member of the Quality Tourism Services Association, a full member of the Canadian
and the Hong Kong Institute of Planners, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, the
Honorary President of Hong Kong Foodstuffs Association as well as being appointed by the
HKSAR Government as member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board and member of the
Provisional Minimum Wage Commission. He is also the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong
Institute of Marketing and the chairman of the Business Enterprise Management Centre of the
Hong Kong Management Association. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in 2007.

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director: Mr. Ng has over 23
years of senior management experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng is
currently the non-executive independent director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a
Hong Kong listed company and director and member of the executive committee for
Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited, a Thailand listed company. He was the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited and SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings
Limited, a Hong Kong listed company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited.
Mr. Ng is the Honorary Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong and was a
member of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC). Mr. Ng graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and Administration.
Mr. Ng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EENSREEASHN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Sze has
senior management experience in the private and investment banking industry serving high
net worth clients and institutions. He currently serves as deputy chief executive of EFG Bank
AG, Hong Kong Branch for Asia Pacific Region. He was the managing director, head of
investment of Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region, the chief executive officer of
Asia-Pacific for Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients division at
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from the
University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia. Mr. Sze was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. PANG Ping Hung, aged 59, joined the Group in 2005 and is the general manager,
responsible for the printing, dyeing and finishing division of our Group. Mr. Pang has over 33
years of experience in the textile industry.

Mr. GOONETILLEKE Rohan, aged 57, is the managing director of Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company since June 2003. Mr. Goonetilleke holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Portsmouth,
United Kingdom. Prior to joining the Group, he was the managing director of Linea Clothing
(Private) Limited.

Mr. NG Ching Wa, Daniel, aged 45, joined the Group in 2009 and is the Head of Management
Information System responsible for managing the information system of our Group. Mr. Ng
holds Master's degrees in Accounting, IT Management and Finance. He is a Certified SAP
Consultant, Certified Information System Auditor and full member of Hong Kong Computer
Society.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the 2010 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of textile products. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2010 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 38 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK13 cents (2009: HK3 cents) per share and the special dividend of
HK22 cents (2009: Nil) per share were paid on 8 January 2010 and 25 February 2010
respectively to shareholders. The Board has proposed the payment of a final dividend of HKI7
cents (2009: HK12 cents) per share to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members at the close of business on 27 August 2010.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from 24 August 2010 to 27 August 2010 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares can be registered. In order to qualify for
the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops |712-1716, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 August 2010.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page ||| of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2010
Financial Year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company's listed securities during the 2010 Financial Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the law of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2010 Financial Year are set
out in note |9 to the financial statements.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2010, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$1,927,096,000 (2009: HK$2,092,854,000), comprising the share premium, the capital
reserve, share-based reserve and the retained earnings of the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are also
available for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Expenditure of approximately HK$252,326,000 (2009: HK$211,835,000) was incurred during
the 2010 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 7
to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the 2010 Financial Year, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$12,000 (2009: HK$126,000).

CAPITALISED INTERESTS
During the 2010 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2009: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2010 Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 47.6% of the Group's total sales and the percentage of sales attributable to the
Group's largest customer amounted to approximately 21.6%. Purchases from the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 37.8% of the total purchases and the
percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier amounted to
approximately 21.9%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interests in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers noted above.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EA##EEERAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the 2010 Financial Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr.-WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)

Dr. LAM King Man

Mr. LAM Hing Chau, Leon (Appointed on 21 September 2009)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung
Mr. IP Ping Im
Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James (Resigned on 28 August 2009)
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong
Mr.Vivek KALRA (Resigned on 28 August 2009)
(Alternate Director to Mr. HO Hsiang Ming, James)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years. Accordingly, Mr.Tsang Kang Po, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel will retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the Company for
an initial term of two years with effect from | April 2007. Each service agreement will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the other party at least six
months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors had been appointed for
an initial term of two years with effect from | May 2007 and subsequently the term of the
appointment has been extended for a further two years. All Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules.

Profile of the above Directors are set out on pages || to |3 of this annual report.
None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by

the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance, to which the Company, or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the 2010 Financial Year or at any time during the 2010 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST AND NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

None of Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which causes or
may cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholders of the Company passed on 27 April 2007,
the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions therein.
The options shall expire on I8 July 2017.The closing price of the share of the Company
immediately before the date of grant was HK$4.86 per share.

A.  Summary of the Share Option Scheme
1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph 2 below).

2. Participants
The Board may grant options to any “Eligible Person”, namely an employee,
director or non-executive director (including INED) of any Member of the Group.

“Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company, subsidiaries
or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated companies of the
Company which the Board determines will be subject to the Share Option
Scheme.

3. Maximum number of Shares
The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing (the "Listing
Date"), representing 143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any |2-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date of
grant of the option.
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Directors’ Report
EER®/E

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A.  Summary of the Share Option Scheme (Contd)
5. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(a)  General vesting period
The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

(b)  Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the
Listing Date.

6. Exercise price and payment on grant
(a)  Exercise price
The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder which
shall not be less than the higher of:

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets;

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option;
and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.
(b) ~ Payment on grant
Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option
granted to them.
7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will terminate automatically at midnight on the day
immediately before the 0th anniversary of the Listing Date.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

B.  Options granted by the Company
As at 31 March 2010, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 19,410,000 Shares
granted to a director and eligible full-time employees pursuant to the terms of the
Share Option Scheme remained outstanding, details of which were as follows:

BRESE (B

B. AAFRCRHZEBRE
R2010F3A318 + RIFERIEE 2 EHE
FTEERZBEENAEA £19,410,000%
AARIBRGD ZBRERRITE  BEFEN

T
Number of share options
Exercise BREZA
Price As at Changes during the period As at
Date of 1%  Exercisable 01/04/2009 BAEH 31/03/2010
Grantee Grant HK$  Period #2009 F  Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled #2010 F
ARA R A Br  TFEH 481H R Eig:d F3d +8§ 3A31H
Executive Director
TES
Lam Hing Chau, Leon 18/07/2007 5.04 18/07/2010- 600,000 — — — — 600,000
(Note) 1710712017
RERL (M 7E)
Eligible Employees 18/07/2007 5.04 18/07/2010- 20,190,000 — — 1,380,000 — 18,810,000
RERER 1710712017
20,790,000 — — 1,380,000 — 19,410,000

Note:  Mr. Lam Hing Chau, Leon has been appointed as an executive Director of the Company with effect
from 21 September 2009.

The fair value of options granted is approximately at an average of HK$1.222 per share
on the basis of binominal model (the “Model”). The significant inputs into the Model
were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the date of grant of HK$4.8 per
share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately 4.8%, an expected option life of
approximate 6 years, expected volatility of 32% and annual dividend yield of 4%. The
amortised fair value of share options for the year ended 3| March 2010 amounting to
approximately HK$6.8 million (2009: HK$8.9 million) was charged to the income
statement.

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that are fully
transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions, including the
expected stock price volatility. Since the Company's share options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because change in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the Model does not
necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of the share options.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted to the Directors, chief executives
or substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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EER®/E

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchangepursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

ESRFDIARGNEERG 2 BHERKXE

R2010F3A31H  EFRARATHEZRALR
ARE AN EE (TEAEHFRBEBRHEXV
M) M BERNRESFT  BEARBESR
HE KD B35BT HFEN B LMAT RSB IE
EETHENSARARBIAMESZR AR D
T

RRARARDZHA

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

REBRTALIRNBEREHRNE

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Name of capital of the
Director/ Company
Chief Executive Personal Family Corporate Trust REAT
94 interests interests interests interests Total BRTEAR
THERERE AR REER EEER fFlEz By ZENEIH
Choi Kin Chung — — — 171,102,000 171,102,000 I'1.94%
BEh Note |
(Hat1)

Ip Ping Im — 2,000,000 401,000,000 — 403,000,000 28.12%
Emm Note 2

(Ht5t2)
Lam Hing Chau, Leon 100,000 — — — 100,000 0.01%
PRELTE Note 3

(H7£3)
Lam King Man 697,000 — 30,000,000 — 30,697,000 2.14%
MEX Note 4 Note 5
(Hf5t4) (Kt #5)

Lam Wing Tak 12,142,000 887,000 100,000,000 — 113,029,000 7.89%
mEeTE Note 6

(K1 i#6)
Lau YiuTong 51,866,000 — — — 51,866,000 3.62%
ZRE
Tsang Kang Po 1,676,000 1,500,000 100,000,000 — 103,176,000 7.20%
ok Note 7

(Hit7)
Wan Wai Loi 11,048,000 820,000 101,304,000 — 113,172,000 7.90%
FER Note 8

(Hit8)
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Long positions in Shares (Cont'd)
Notes:

B These Shares are directly held by Silver Bay International Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital is
wholly-owned by Trustcorp Limited, the trustee of the Cypress Pacific Trust, a discretionary trust. For the
purposes of the SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung is the founder of the Cypress Pacific Trust.

2. These Shares are directly held by Far East Asia Limited, whose issued share capital is wholly-owned by Mr.
Ip Ping Im.

3. These Shares are directly held by Mr. Lam Hing Chau, Leon, who was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 21 September 2009.

4. These Shares are held jointly by Dr. Lam King Man and his spouse.

5. These Shares are directly held by Effective Approach Technology Limited, whose issued share capital is 50%
owned by Dr. Lam King Man and 50% owned by the spouse of Dr. Lam King Man.

6. These Shares are directly held by Fifth Element Enterprises Limited, whose issued share capital is 75%
owned by Mr.Lam WingTak and 25% owned by the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

7. These Shares are directly held by Top Strong Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital is 50% owned by
Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

8. These Shares are directly held by Hollywood Pacific Limited, whose issued capital is 25% owned by Mr.
Wan Wai Loi and 25% owned by the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company, had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the 2010 Financial Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

ESRFDFRGNEERG 2 BHER KR
(#)

ERARGB2HER (F)
GER

1. ZE R DA {7 i Silver Bay International Holdings
LimitedE £ # & + M Trustcorp Limited2 HE B
Silver Bay International Holdings LimitedZ B %17 i%
7 o Trustcorp Limited BV 4 {5 5% Cypress Pacific
TrustZ fE5EA - REFRBERIIME - BEREAE
ACypress Pacific TrustZ B3 A e

2. ZE DRI B Far East Asia Limited E#EHE M
R ST 4 2 U Far East Asia Limited 2 B %47
N

3. ZEAQRRRHBEMERLTEEERE  MHERLAE
R2009F9A21 B BZEAKRRRAMITES -

4. ZEARABRMDOAMESXELRALBARSS -

5. #%SARERD A Effective Approach Technology
LimitedEERKA  MARNBELRARBSAIES
Effective Approach Technology LimitedZ 50% 2 %
FIRA o

6. ZE RN AR A Fifth Element Enterprises Limited
EERE MHAKREEEREERSBS HEAFFifth
Element Enterprises LimitedZ 75% % 25%E. 817 i
xo

7. ZERDERA R Top Strong Holdings Limited & #
BE MEEREEREREBDAHEATop Strong
Holdings Limited 250% B # 1T »

8. ZE RN A B i Hollywood Pacific LimitedE & #
EomMABRREEREERE D A% E Hollywood
Pacific Limited,Z 25% B & 1TA K o

B EXHEES  R2010F38318  RIEEHR
G D352 REATREME LMWL -
XSRS B AR DA BB A% @A
BEESEHIARDATRAHN AR B HE T HE
EE (TR BERBEBRHIEXVE) MG - 88
B REHT  FEEAERZRAE -
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EER®/E

FTERRREMATRRQTRGHEBER
ZEERAR

R2010F3A31 A - REARDFZRESR REAEED
FIBUREFEZBLMATLE  THAL(ES
AR TTHAEE RN IR 2 B R 15 SRR A A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2010, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of

the SFO: BREZEDIRA
Long positions in Shares RRERBHR
Approximate
percentage
interest of
Number of issued share
issued capital of
Name of Shares Aggregate the Company
shareholder Note Nature of interest N long position REQTE BT
RRER ftat BEME RHEE BRAH REAZBHBEIML
Chiu Bo Lan Beneficial owner 820,000 113,172,000 7.90%
EEH BB A
/ Interest of a controlled corporation 101,304,000
NARZHER 2 #R
2 Interest of spouse 11,048,000
REzEs
Hollywood Pacific Limited I Beneficial owner 101,304,000 101,304,000 7.07%
BB A
Lam Wai Yee Beneficial owner 2,000,000 403,000,000 28.12%
M= BaERA
3 Interest of spouse 401,000,000
[ £
Far East Asia Limited 4 Beneficial owner 401,000,000 401,000,000 27.98%
ERERA
Wong Bik Ha Beneficial owner 887,000 113,029,000 7.89%
BEE BB A
5 Interest of a controlled corporation 100,000,000
NARZHER 2 #R
6 Interest of spouse 12,142,000
REzEs
Fifth Element Enterprises 5 Beneficial owner 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
Limited BExSBREA
Law Oi Mui 7 Interest of spouse 171,102,000 171,102,000 11.94%
ER REzEs
Trustcorp Limited 8 Trustee 171,102,000 | 71,102,000 | 1.94%
EFEA
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EER®/E

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

FERRREMATRARTROGAEBR
B EERKE (B)

(Cont'd)
Long positions in Shares (Cont'd) ARARBPZHER (B)

Approximate
percentage
interest of

Number of issued share
issued capital of
Name of Shares Aggregate the Company
shareholder Note Nature of interest NN long position REQTE BT
REEMH i3 BEEE ROEA BRAH REZHOBEIL
Silver Bay International 8 Beneficial owner 71,102,000 71,102,000 |1.94%
Holdings Limited EnEAA
Wong Mei Ling Beneficial owner 1,500,000 103,176,000 7.20%
BER EEBEAA
9 Interest of a controlled corporation 100,000,000
RERZHER 2 #H
10 Interest of spouse 1,676,000
[ F
Top Strong Holdings 9 Beneficial owner 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.98%
Limited BExBEAA
The Capital Group Interest of a controlled corporation 123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%
Companies, Inc. REREHBE 2 #Em
Capital Group Interest of a controlled corporation 123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%
International, Inc. RERZEHEE 2 B
Capital International, Inc. Interest of a controlled corporation 123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%
REREHER 2 #R
I Investment manager
REgE
Capital International [ Interest of a controlled corporation 123,600,000 123,600,000 8.63%
Investments 1V, LLC NEREGIEE 2
Capital International [ Interest of a controlled corporation 119,620,100 119,620,100 8.35%
Investments IV, L.P REREHER 2 ER
Capital International [ Beneficial owner 119,620,100 119,620,100 8.35%

Private Equity Fund IV, L.P

BalisA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Cont'd)

Long positions in Shares (Contd)

Notes:

B Hollywood Pacific Limited is 25% owned by Mr.Wan Wai Loi and 25% owned by Ms. Chiu Bo Lan, the
spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

2. Ms. Chiu Bo Lan is the spouse of Mr.Wan Wai Loi, a Director.
3. Ms. Lam Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.
4. Far East Asia Limited is wholly-owned by Mr.Ip Ping Im, a Director.

5. Fifth Element Enterprises Limited is 75% owned by Mr. Lam Wing Tak and 25% owned by Ms.Wong Bik Ha,
the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

6. Ms. Wong Bik Ha is the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, a Director.
7. Ms. Law Oi Mui is the spouse of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director.

8. Silver Bay International Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Trustcorp Limited, the trustee of the Cypress
Pacific Trust, a discretionary trust. For the purposes of the SFO, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a Director, is the
founder of the Cypress Pacific Trust.

9. Top Strong Holdings Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by Ms. Wong Mei Ling,
the spouse of Mr.Tsang Kang Po.

10.  Ms.Wong Mei Ling is the spouse of Mr.Tsang Kang Po, a Director.

I'l. Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P is a private equity fund managed by Capital International,
Inc. Capital International Investments IV, L.P.is the general partner of Capital International Private Equity
Fund IV, LP. The general partner of Capital International Investments IV, LP is Capital International
Investments IV, LLC, which is also the general partner of CGPE IV LP, an employee securities fund formed
to invest side-by-side with Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. Capital International, Inc. is the
managing member of Capital International Investments [V, LLC.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of any other member in the Group

FERRREMATREARTRGNEBR
HZRERAR (B)

ERRRBZHR (E)
firat -

1. FEREEREERMBHEHZ L9 5IEE Hollywood
Pacific Limited 225%##5 °

2. RERLLTAESFERA4LZEB-
3. MEBRIAESEMMAEZERE-
4. Far East Asia Limited REZERKEE2EHE ©

5, MEREEREEGBREE X+ 55 # A Fifth
Element Enterprises LimitedZ 75% % 25%# 2 °

6. EEBERIREEHRBALEZEE-
7. BREBRLIREEERTRALCEE-

8. Silver Bay International Holdings Limitedf
Trustcorp Limited®&# 4  Trustcorp Limited A&
HE{Z7E Cypress Pacific TrustZ 255 A « BEF RS
BhIME - EEEEP L EACypress Pacific TrustZ
BIHEA

9. EHRTAERHEBEXRRZLTHHIHEATop Strong
Holdings Limited 2 50%# 5 °

10, BERZLIRESCHEALEZES -

11.  Capital International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P.J3
i Capital International, Inc. BB 2 LEFHFES -
Capital International Investments IV, L.P.% Capital
International Private Equity Fund IV, LP.Z £@& %
A e Capital International Investments IV, L.P.Z % &
&% A B Capital International Investments IV, LLC ®
ZATINACGPE IV, LP.ZE&EAE A ° CGPE IV
LPARBEZESES ML 2B KA HC Capital
International Private Equity Fund IV, L.P. £ R&#& °
Capital International, Inc.A Capital International
Investments IV, LLCZEEK DA ¢

RESEEMEMREQ R 2RO REBRSG 27
B

Approximate

percentage

Name of Number of of issued

Name of member substantial issued share capital

of the Group shareholder Note Nature of interest shares RAQERERZ

AEERERA AR TERRER ik BEEE R EE BREDL

Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Brandix Lanka Limited | Beneficial owner 76,666,992 40%

Limited ExBBA

Note: ftat -

I Textured Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited is owned as to 60% by Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and 40% by Brandix Lanka Limited.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Directors’ Report
EER®/E

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Cont'd)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of any other member in the Group (Contd)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no other persons had any interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2010 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 34 to the financial statements also constitute
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

During the 2010 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions
not exempted under the Listing Rules 14A.33:

Continuing Connected Transaction

(1) Sale of products to Bandix group and its associates
Sale of knitted fabric to Brandix together with its subsidiaries (“Brandix Group”) and its
associate pursuant to a sale of products master agreement (the “Brandix Sale of
Products Master Agreement”) dated 27 August 2007 between the Company and
Brandix Group. Details of the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement are set out in
the circular of the Company dated 14 September 2007 (the “2007 Circular”) and the
circular of the Company dated || March 2010 (the "2010 Circular”). Transactions took
place under the Brandix Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 2010 Financial Year
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$ 1,045 million (2009: HK$616 million).

According to the Listing Rules, Brandix, by virtue of its shareholding in PT Sri Lanka, a
subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
and hence a connected person of the Company. Brandix Group and its associates are
therefore also regarded as connected persons of the Company.

FERRREMATRARTROGAEBR
B EERKE (B)

RESEEAEMRELAAZROREBRA 2T
B (&)

Br EXCETBEESN - R2010F 38310 EHM
ANIRARRRO K EEBRDPEEREES L
BIEPIEIREBEFE 2B MLz S

PN
KR e

BEROURGESR 22 H

ARE - ARRARRATANEL AR ZME
AFER2010F P B EF AR HES BT ER
L8 BEARAESUHBARD S EMEMD
EANBRZBOREFMES -

BERXS
EURHBRENEUNBIALRS - FB LD
RAFREDHEDERS -

R2010F B FE - AREF T T & LM AR
14A 3R 2 HERER S

BEBRERS

(1) [EBrandixEBREBEAHEE R
mBrandix:& R EFIE A & ([Brandix =& ]) &
HEe A S E T8 2R A A 5 ©Brandix
R2007F8A27R I U EMEE AT
([BrandixE REE @] ) B ° BrandixE
mIBE RS 2 FEEN2007F9A 148 28
& ([2007F @ K]) ©2010F3 8118 2B K
(T2010F@K]) - R2010F BT BEE - REE
BrandixE FIHEBMRET IR I T EZREF
€ LPR1,0455 8% T (2009%F : 616 H B
JT) °

B EmHA - ERBrandixE A A D 7 B
NPT TEFHFBE  BrandixBEERR
(REMBRAZER) EMARDAIZEEA
T o Al BrandixEEREBEANRERAE
ARARZBBAL
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Contd)

(2)

(3)

Sale of Products to PT Sri Lanka

Sale of knitted fabrics and greige fabrics to PT Sri Lanka pursuant to a master
agreement (the “PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master Agreement"”) dated 30 April 2007
between the Company and PT Sri Lanka. Details of PT Sri Lanka Sale of Products
Master Agreement are set out in the Prospectus. Transactions took place under the PT
Sri Lanka Sale of Products Master Agreement for the 2010 Financial Year did not exceed
the annual cap of HK$79 million (2009: HK$58 million).

According to the Listing Rules, PT Sri Lanka is regarded as a connected person as PT Sri
Lanka is an associate of connected persons as mentioned above.

Sale of Products to HC Companies

Sale of knitted fabrics to companies in which Mr. Henry Choi has substantial interest
(the "HC Companies™) pursuant to a master agreement (the "HC Companies Sale of
Products Master Agreement”) dated 30 April 2007 between the Company and the HC
Companies. Details of HC Companies Sale of Products Master Agreement are set out in
the Prospectus. Transactions took place under the HC Companies Sale of Products
Master Agreement for the 2010 Financial Year did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$25.9 million (2009: HK$22.5 million).

Mr. Henry Choi, who is the son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung (a Director), is regarded as a
connected person of the Company by virtue of Listing Rule 14A.11(4)(b).

The Directors, including the INED, have reviewed the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions made during the 2010 Financial Year and confirmed that these transactions were
entered into:

()
)

G)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

in accordance with each of the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

Continuing Connected Transaction (Cont'd)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of the Company
to perform certain factual finding procedures on the above continuing connected transactions
for the 2010 Financial Year (the "Transactions”) on a sample basis in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures
Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has reported their factual findings for the selected samples based on
the agreed procedures to the Board stating that:

(

) theTransactions had been approved by the Directors;

(2)  the pricing of Transactions (for the samples selected) were in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

(3) the Tansactions were entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the Transactions (for the sample selected); and

(4)  the amounts of the Transactions had not exceeded the relevant caps as disclosed in the
Prospectus and the 2007 Circular respectively.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
[4A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which
need to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules and no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the 2010 Financial Year or at any time during the 2010 Financial Year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the relevant Director's experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the shareholders of
the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) was established by the Board with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng
Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from page 29 to page 35 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
percentage of the Company's shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the Company's event after the 2010 Financial Year are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for 2010 Financial Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of
the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company at the

forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 9 July 2010
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The Board recognises the importance of maintaining high standard of corporate governance
practices to enhance corporate value, transparency and accountability and to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions and certain recommended best
practices (“Recommended Best Practices”) set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 4
to the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company throughout the 2010 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securnities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the Model
Code for the 2010 Financial Year.

THE BOARD

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested to the Board. The Board is
responsible for the formulation of strategic, management and financial objectives of the Group
and ensuring that the interest of shareholders including those minority shareholders are
protected. Daily operations and administration of the Group are delegated to the executive
Directors and the management.

The Board Composition
The Board currently has | | members consisting of 5 executive Directors and 6 non-executive
Directors of which 3 are INEDs. The composition is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr.WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. LAM King Man

Mr.LAM Hing Chau, Leon

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung
Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael
Mr.NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Profile of the Directors is set out on pages || to |3 of this annual report and is updated on
the website of the Company.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with Directors having sales and marketing
experience and technical knowledge in fabric business, administration and management
experience in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skill is appropriate for effective
decision making, taking into account the nature and scope of the business operations and
development of the Group.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

The Board Meeting

The Board meets at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened when
deemed necessary by Board. The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year has been
informed to each Director: Notices of Board meeting will be served to all the Directors at
least 14 days before the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman. All the Directors are given the
opportunity to include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the
Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate background information
and supporting analysis are made available to the Directors at least 3 days before the
intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are given separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management for further information and enquiries. The
Company Secretary and senior management attends all the meetings of the Board and Board
committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the directors/substantial
shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in the Board meeting. Pursuant to the
Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of
the Board in respect of any contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in
which he or any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
“associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest, except in
certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting is required to ensure that
each Director is aware of such requirement at the commencement of each Board meeting and
declaration of interest is properly made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.

Directors have access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary and key officers
of the Company in relation to the board procedures. Draft minutes of Board/Board
committee meetings recorded in sufficient details the matters considered by the participants
of such meetings and decisions reached are forwarded to the participants for comments
within a reasonable time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for
inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information to allow the
Directors to fulfill their duties properly. Directors may seek independent professional advice at
the Company’s expense, if necessary, with the approval of the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and Officers Liability
Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against Directors and
management in execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

During the 2010 Financial Year, the Board held 6 meetings to approve interim and final results
announcements, interim reports and annual reports, to consider dividend policy and to discuss
significant issues and the general operation of the Company. The attendance record of the
Directors is set out in the table on page 32 of this annual report.

THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are segregated and not exercised by the same individual. The Board is
headed by the Chairman Mr. Wan Wai Loi, with the assistance of the Vice Chairman, Mr. Tsang
Kang Po and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Lam Wing Tak.
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THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (Contd)

There is a clear segregation between the Chairman’s responsibility and the Chief Executive
Officer’s responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running of
the Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the management of the
daty-to-day operations of the Group’s business and the implementation of the approved
strategies of the Group. In addition, each executive Director is responsible for the
management of different functions of the business of the Group.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all the Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and be provided with adequate
information in a timely manner.

INEDS

During the 2010 Financial Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise. The Board
considers that each of the Non-executive Directors and INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board.

The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the issues of
strategic direction, development, performance and risk management of the Group.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent of the management and free of any relationship that could materially interfere
with the exercise of their independent judgment.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a Director to fill a
casual vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates who are
experienced and competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence would be recommended to the Board.

Each of the executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years and each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to the
other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) was appointed for a specific term
of 2 years and subsequently the term of the appointment has been extended for a further 2
years. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election
pursuant to the Articles.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or
as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the next following
general meeting after appointment. At every AGM, one-third of the Directors, including the
Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The
Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement and re-election as
mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for
the time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who
are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical
details made available to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on
their re-election. Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be
timely disclosed to the shareholders by announcement and shall include in such
announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his resignation.
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RESPONSIBLITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a
Director of the Company and of the business and operating activities and development of the
Company. Every Director is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve the Board with such degree
of care and due dilligence given his own expertise, qualification and professionalism.

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with comprehensive and tailored induction
of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of our factory in China on the first
occasion of his appointment. A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided to each
Director and has been updated. All Directors have been updated and briefed the relevant
changes in legal and regulatory matters to ensure that they have a proper understanding of
the operations and the business of the Company and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities under the applicable laws and regulations.

The non-executive Directors attended the Board meetings and advised their opinion on the
business strategy of the Company and reviewed the financial and operation performance of
the Group.

INEDs are all or a majority of members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.
Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and participate in senior management
meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of the latest operations and performance of the
Group and to monitor and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies set
by the Board of directors correctly and appropriately.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of Director at the meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee during the 2010 Financial Year are set
out in the following table:

Board
B=R
Executive Directors BHITEE
Mr.Wan Wai Loi FEREL 5/6
Mr. Tsang Kang Po Rk 6/6
Mr. Lam Wing Tak MEREEE 5/6
Dr. Lam King Man MEXE L 5/6
Mr. Lam Hing Chau, Leon MRELRE 5 & 5/5
(Appointed on 21 September 2009) (FA 20094 9 B 21 BEZRT)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Choi Kin Chung gt 4/6
Mr. Ip Ping Im EWMEE 4/6
Mr. Ho Hsiang Ming, James BRREE 11
(Resigned on 28 August 2009) (742009 F 8 A 28 HEHT)
Mr. Lau Yiu Tong FEREAE 6/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITESE
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael Rk S A 6/6
Mr. Ng Ching Wah HBEESLE 6/6
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel 1 B & 5 A 5/6
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 main Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each chaired by different INED, to
assist the Board for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The terms of
reference setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee are available on the website of
the Company. Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and
recommendations at the Board meetings.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code.The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel; Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are INEDs). Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee,

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervision of the
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting process, internal control systems and risk
management. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been reviewed by the
Board with reference to the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2010 Financial Year. The major work performed
by the Audit Committee in respect of 2010 Financial Year included approving the terms of
engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited
interim financial information and interim results announcement for the six months ended 30
September 2009; reviewing the audited annual financial information and final results
announcement for 2010 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group'’s internal audit
department and assessing the effectiveness of the Group'’s systems of risk management and
internal control. The Audit Committee recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company's external auditor for the ensuing year and the
related resolutions shall be put forth in the coming AGM. The attendance of the Directors for
the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the table on page 32 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s auditor. For 2010
Financial Year, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company's
auditor were as follows:
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2010 2009

2010 & 2009 F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE 7 FHT

Audit Services B 1,781 1,730
Non-audit Services FEEZIR

—Tax consultation services and — T 75 R ) AR A £
review interim financial information EXPHUEER 402 780

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-audit services provided by the
Company's auditor and concluded that in their opinion such services did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

ERZBSCRAADARHUMAMEHR Z2HEE
ZR% REZERELTHEGHM 2B -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

Audit Committee (Contd)

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in conjunction with the auditor, the
audited annual financial statements of the Group for the 2010 Financial Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Annual Report for the 2010
Financial Year has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Recommended Best Practice. The members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing, Nigel (who are INEDs); Mr. Tsang Kang Po and Mr. Lam Wing Tak (who are executive
Directors). Mr. Ng Ching Wah is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors and the management of the Board succession.

The Nomination Committee met twice during the 2010 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Nomination Committee in respect of the 2010 Financial Year included
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors and make
recommendation on the appointment of executive Director, Mr. Lam Hing Chau, Leon, re-
election of Mr.Tsang Kang Po, Mr. Choi Kin Chung, Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. Sze
Kwok Wing, Nigel as the Directors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The attendance of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meetings is set out
in the table on page 32 of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The members of the Remuneration Committee
are Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Ng Ching Wah (who are
INEDs) and Mr. Lam Wing Tak and Mr.Tsang Kang Po (who are executive Directors). Mr. Chan
Yue Kwong, Michael is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to the nature of their work, complexity of the
responsibilities and performance. No director is allowed to take part in any discussion about
his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the 2010 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2010 Financial Year included reviewing
the remuneration of the Directors with reference to the remuneration level of directors of
comparable listed companies. The attendance of the Directors for the Remuneration
Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 32 of this annual report.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix |6 of the Listing Rules are set out in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 100. The Directors’ fee shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. Other emoluments shall from time to time be
determined by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities and
subject to a review by the Remuneration Committee.
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ACCOUNTANCY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2010 Financial Year which give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group. The Company's interim report and annual report are prepared and published in
accordance with statutory requirements and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a
timely manner required under the Listing Rules. Directors are provided with adequate
information to enable them to make an informed assessment of financial and other
information on matters for their approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 36 to 37 of this annual report.

Internal controls

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group. The Company has from time to time
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems in order to ensure that they meet
with the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the 2010 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions, the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and the training programmes and
budget through the Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee with the assistance
of an international independent risk consulting firm.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with shareholders and
strives to ensure the timeliness, completencess and accuracy of information disclosure to
shareholders and to the protection in the interests of shareholders. The Board maintains an
on-going dialogue with shareholders through general meeting of the Company to
communicate with shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and the representative of each
committee have attended the general meeting to answer any questions from shareholders. As
a channel to further promote effective communication, the Group maintains a website,
allowing shareholders to access updates on the Company’s particulars where the Company's
announcements, financial information and other information are posted.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate issue. A
shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
The notice of AGM was sent to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and the notice of all other general meetings to be sent at least 10 clear business days.

Voting by Poll

The Articles has set out the rights of shareholders and procedures demanding and conducting
a poll on resolutions at general meeting, procedures for and shareholders’ right to demand a
poll have been specified in corporate communications to shareholders and explained details of
such rights at the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders by the Chairman. As
required by the Listing Rules, all the general meetings will be voted by way of poll. The results
of the poll, if any, are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR S

PRICEWATERHOUSE( QOPERS

BORKESHMEBAR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") set out on pages 38 to |10, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2010, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Independent Auditor’s Report
VR 7% T

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 July 2010
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Financial Information
B 7% & &

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT For the year ended 31 March 2010

SBAWBR 22010838318 1L5E

2010 2009

2010 2009 &

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

fat FTHER TET

Revenue WA 5 5,883,413 4734816

Cost of sales HHE A 25 (4,661,649) (4,047,859)

Gross profit EF 1,221,764 686,957
Other income and other Hi A REM (FR) /

(losses)/gains - net Wz — % 24 67,219 59,552
Distribution and selling expenses DERHEERST 25 (135,694) (149,850)
General and administrative expenses —RRITHAX 25 (184,164) (170,580)
Operating profit KRN 969,125 426,079
Finance income 3 ON 27 4,946 16,584
Finance costs TR 27 (3,833) (14,767)
Share of profit of associates DIEEE DR ZRT 9(a) 6,706 1423
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities SERREFHERZEE 10(a) (8,413) —
Profit before income tax P85t Ala R 968,53 429319
Income tax expense FTig R % 28 (149,680) (48,713)
Profit for the year FERA 818,851 380,606
Profit attributable to: THATEGEET

Equity holders of the Company ARAERFEA 803,186 376,515

Minority interests DEIR R R 15,665 4,091

818,851 380,606
Earnings per share for profit attributable ARAIRIERA A

to the equity holders of the Company 15 F E % A

during the year =3k

— basic and diluted (HK$) —BEARREE (Br) 29 0.56 0.26
Dividends B8 30 745,127 214,940

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Information
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME For the year ended 31 March 2010

SEE2EWER 82010638318 LEE

2010 2009

20105 2009

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

liFsa THER TET

Profit for the year FERF 818,851 380,606
Other comprehensive income: HitsZ2EWA :

Currency translation differences INEHMEEE 6,488 36,253

Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEKARE 825,339 416,859
Attributable to: THALEMS:

Equity holders of the Company RRARERFEEA 809,951 412,768

Minority interests DER R = 15,388 4,091

Total comprehensive income for the year FEXERARE 825,339 416,859

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

F46E110B 2 A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 2010
BEBESMER #201083831H

2010 2009
2010 F 2009 F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
ft &t TER TET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights HE L ]2 3 6 27,188 27931
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 1,444,561 1,499,192
Interests in associates i RN 9 27,752 23,201
Interests in jointly controlled entities PEREH B 2 Em 10 102,199 20,141
Deferred income tax assets RILEFSHEE 21 4,950 —
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEESHERE I 1,780 |,760
Structured deposits and bonds HEEEFEIRES 12 130,301 —
1,738,731 1,572,225
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 13 1,173,632 761,640
Trade and bills receivables U R ERE 14 788,820 600,116
Deposits, prepayments and 7 BAFER
other receivables H b U FIB 15 66,490 18,289
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA 16 4,961 |,596
Structured deposits and bonds LEBEFARES |2 194,267 —
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 17 689,383 1,431,664
2,917,553 2,813,305
Total assets EEAE 4,656,284 4,385,530
EQUITY EH
Equity attributable to TATEEHEA
equity holders of the Company LR
Share capital EEEN 18 1,433 1,433
Share premium R4 B 18 1,371,817 1,687,063
Reserves 1 19 1,880,980 1,422,470
3,254,230 3,110,966
Minority interests DHRRER 65,723 50,335
Total equity EREE 3,319,953 3,161,301

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Information
Bt 7% &

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 2010

BEBESER 72010838318

2010 2009
2010 2009 &
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fit &t TER FET
LIABILITIES =4
Non-current liabilities *rEEE
Borrowings BE 20(a) 848 120,377
Finance lease obligations BEMRERE 20(b) — 232
Derivative financial instruments TESRMTA 6 72 —
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEFMEHARE 21 16,751 4,825
17,671 125,434
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payables ERERRRE 22 805,291 551,432
Accruals and other payables JEETIER R E b B 5RIE 23 354,356 239,264
Amount due to an associate JERTEEE A BB 9 5,250 —
Borrowings P 20(a) 73,430 284,258
Finance lease obligations BERERE 20(b) 79 657
Derivative financial instruments TESmTA 16 1,240 61
Current income tax liabilities REFERAE 79,014 23,123
1,318,660 1,098,795
Total liabilities afEeE 1,336,331 1,224,229
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 4,656,284 4,385,530
Net current assets RBEERE 1,598,893 [, 714510
Total assets less current liabilities EELABERRBEE 3,337,624 3,286,735

Approved by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2010:

Wan Wai Loi
FER

Director

BE

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

EERMN2010F7 9B ERSB ¢

Tsang Kang Po
BHR
Director

BE
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BALANCE SHEET As at 31 March 2010

BERMER 1201038310
2010 2009
2010 F 2009 F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
gz FER FET
ASSETS &gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BARZIEE 8 8 8
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al =PNGIE ¢ 8 2,068,349 2,041,394
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Be - ERFOEREMEKIE I5 149 292
Derivative financial instruments TESBIE 6 — 392
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 17 2,195 58,181
2,070,693 2,100,259
Total assets EEHAE 2,070,701 2,100,267
EQUITY g
Share capital EEEN 18 1,433 1,433
Share premium MR ASH B 18 1,371,817 1,687,063
Reserves & 19 555,279 405,791
1,928,529 2,094,287
LIABILITIES &fE
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B Kk H th 1S 58 23 3,109 5,980
Amount due to a subsidiary FESHB B A B3k 3E 8 139,063 —
Total liabilities BELHE 142,172 5,980
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 2,070,701 2,100,267
Net current assets REEEFE 1,928,521 2,094,279
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBER 1,928,529 2,094,287

Approved by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2010:

Wan Wai Loi
FER
Director

3

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Bt 7% &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBBBR 822010538310 LFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
NG £r3 22PN Minority
Share Share Interests
capital premium Reserves Total $Y Total

RAx  REEE i A RREZR EDAR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
et TR T TR TR TEL FEL
(Note 18) (Note 18) (Note 19)
(Mit18)  (Wi18)  (Wt19)

Balance at | April 2008 R2008%F 4 B 1 B2tk 1433 1,794,533 1,043,799 2,839,765 46,244 2,886,009
Comprehensive income: 2EHBA:

Profit for the year ERER — — 376,515 376,515 4091 380,606
Other comprehensive income: H2EWA

Currency translation differences EBHREER — — 36,253 36,253 — 36,253
Total comprehensive income dEMARE - = 412,768 412768 4_1,_(29I 416,859
Transactions with owners: HEEARS

Share-based compensation expenses {7 H % 18(c) — — 8891 8,891 — 8,891
2007/08 final dividend 2007/08 F AR & — (107,470) — (107,470) — (107,470)
2008/09 interim dividend 2008/09 F# Hfik & 30 — — (42,988) (42,988) — (42,988)
Total transactions with owners HEEARZEE — (107,470) (34097)  (141567) — (141,567)
Balance at 31 March 2009 20095 3 A 31 B2 &R 1433 1,687,063 1,422,470 3,110966 50335 3,161,301
Balance at | April 2009 R2009%F 4 B 1 B2tk 1,433 1,687,063 1,422,470 3,110,966 50,335 3,161,301
Comprehensive income: 2EHBA:

Profit for the year ERER - - 803,186 803,186 15,665 818,851
Other comprehensive income: H2EWA

Currency translation differences BHREER — — 6,765 6,765 (277) 6,488
Total comprehensive income dEMARE - = 809,951 809,951 I_§,_3_88 825,339
Transactions with owners: HEBARS

Share-based compensation expenses {7 HE % (1 18(c) — — 6,793 6,793 — 6,793
2008/09 final dividend 2008/09 F AR Hi% & 30 — — (171,952) (171,952) — (171,952)
2009/10 interim dividend 2009/10 FH HifE & 30 - —  (186,282)  (186,282) —  (186,282)
2009/10 special dividend 2009/10 F 5515 & 30 — (315,246) — (315,246) — (315,246)
Total transactions with owners HETARZER — (315,246) (351,441) (666,687) — (666,687)
Balance at 31 March 2010 R2010F3 A 31 B2ith 1,433 1,371,817 1,880,980 3,254,230 65,723 3,319,953
The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. FA5EN0EZMFEDEEMBHRERZHM o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended 31 March 2010

SEBELHRER 8F2010F3A31ALEE

2010 2009
2010 2009 %
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ft &t FERT FHET

Cash flow from operating activities REXKHERE
Cash generated from operations REXBEEZRSE 3l(a) 955,225 905,365
Interest paid BARFA (3,833) (14,767)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREERER (41,043) (12,901)
Mainland China income tax paid B A B A A S B (45,810) (16,523)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEBELEZRL TR 864,539 861,174
Cash flow from investing activities RETBHZHAERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BELRRE (240,645) (211,835)
Purchases of strutured deposits and bonds BEABUEGTRARES (324,568) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEW¥ « BE RREANEHIE 31(b) 17,147 4,033
Investments in associates EA%&%@ AZRE = (6,435)
Investments in jointly controlled entities HRE %\Jgﬁi‘fz&ﬁ (90,471) (20,141)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired Wﬁﬁf‘ﬁ% CHRelEFE 31(d) 2,384 —
Interest income received B2 UF /%\LBU\ 4,946 16,584
Dividend income received BEURSMA = 7
Net cash used in investing activities RETHHAZHEL TR (631,207) (217,787)
Net cash inflow before financing activities MEFHRRERAFE 233,332 643,387
Cash flow from financing activities BETH HERE
Repayment of a loan from a minority shareholder —%0 %(HX%ZTM EE (9,591) —
New borrowings MEEE 12,399 64,820
Repayment of borrowings EREE (297,764) (301,105)
Repayment of capital element of finance lease obligations 1@5\%@E§ﬁ%\7¥(§*2§$*ﬁ (810) (1,493)
Dividends paid B (673,480) (150,458)
Net cash used in financing activities METBHBAZELFEHE (969,246) (388,236)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEBEE (BY) /HNFHE (735,914) 255,151
Cash, cash equivalents and R4R1BEE BeLSEEESE

bank overdrafts at | April RITEX 1,418,659 1,146,769
Foreign exchange adjustment IERETE 3,731 16,739
Cash, cash equivalents and MR3B31AEE - BELEEER

bank overdrafts at 31 March BHETEX 17 686,476 1,418,659

The notes on pages 45 to |10 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited EX##XRHRAT

Financial Information
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and trading of textile products. Its
production bases are primarily located in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")
and Sri Lanka.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is PO. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of HK
dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 9 July 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has adopted the following new and amended HKFRSs as of |
April 2009:

HKAS | (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements” (effective |
January 2009). The revised standard requires ‘non-owner changes in
equity’ to be presented separately from owner changes in equity in a
statement of comprehensive income. As a result the Group presents
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity all owner changes
in equity, whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Comparative
information has been re-presented so that it also is in conformity
with the revised standard. Since the change in accounting policy only
impacts presentation aspects, there is no impact on earnings per
share.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments — Disclosures”
(effective | January 2009). The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. In
particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair value
measurements by level of a fair value measurement hierarchy. As the
change in accounting policy only results in additional disclosures,
there is no impact on earnings per share.

HKFRS 8, “Operating Segments"” (effective | January 2009). HKFRS 8
replaces HKAS 14, “"Segment Reporting”, and aligns segment
reporting with the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131,
“Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information”. The new standard requires a ‘management approach’,
under which segment information is presented on the same basis as
that used for internal reporting purposes. This has not resulted in
significant change in the number of reportable segments presented by
the Group. The reportable segment remains the “manufacturing and
trading of textile products” segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 4R A& B EREM T (&)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EE&HHEME (£)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 RHEEE(H)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued) EHBREREZEEY
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (Continued) (a) AEECHEMAZHITRETER
(%)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the MELEDH 2 BEEME
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker BEerFER ((EEES)
("CODM"). The CODM has been identified as the executive %‘J)Fﬂm E@W*K#&iﬁﬁ
directors that make strategic decisions. RAZELEEH—H- -8R

%&*é/?% RERBEDEERM
AHEEENHORE - AR
%ﬁlﬁ%%ﬂ’ﬁﬁjﬁfﬂ IRTE °

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that (b) M2009F4ENMEALEELEER
have become effective in 2009 but not relevant to the Group’s operations BZEARBRTEANBITERE
The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing WTRERMED - RTEANE
standards have been published and are mandatory for accounting periods A1 RERER2009F4 A1 B AR
beginning on or after | April 2009 but are not relevant to the Group's Eﬂ ﬁéZ@‘a‘f,ﬁﬂ fil 3 & 18 3R A
operations: Mo HEREEEERR

Effective for accounting REIRERAE
periods beginning on or after BheEHERLN

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs | Jaunary 2009 BReiEl REHE 20095 1A18

1%

HKAS 32 and HKAS | Puttable Financial Instruments and I Jaunary 2009 FReHEYN  TALEBIAR 00951518
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation ENFATR  BRANCEM

gHEHRIR
(1)
HKFRS | and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, I Jaunary 2009 BRUEGEEY  WEBOA EEMY  2009E151A
(Amendments) Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate ﬁﬁﬁ&é’é ERAhERA
gpEiEng  REAE
(i)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Share-based Payment | Jaunary 2009 é%,ﬁﬁ%f&%ﬁﬁw WRIBRA R 009£1 718
F15 57%)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and ~ Reassessment of Period ending on or Bh (ERERRS W\ﬂfﬁlﬂ BN09E6A 3082
HKAS 39 Embedded Derivatives after 30 June 2009 ﬁ% z8g)- EHE B
(Amendments) i 9ﬁﬂ

a\%@m
2308 (BT7)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes | July 2008 FAERNERE EPAdHE 200857514
#EZEE)-
REER
HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for the Construction I January 2009 ER(ERMHE: RUERERE 0095 1A1H
of Real Estate #EZEE)-
2RR150
HK(IFRIC) - Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a | October 2008 ER(ERMHEs BOMZE RAZR 06510718
Foreign Operation #EZEE)-
RS 108

HKFRSs First Annual Improvements Project | January 2009 BRMBAEEN  ARen WQW 2009171A
(Amendments) Published in October 2008 by HKICPA (%) 0085 10RER

éﬁtﬁﬁﬂ&%ﬁlﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning on or after | April 2010 or later periods, but
the Group has not early adopted them:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RERBHRERME (B)

2. EEEHBEBER (F)

2.1 RREE(E)

SNBRERE 2 (£)

(c) REMMAEEALERAFHN
FTEARBTEABTHERE
T ABEMAER - BTEAE
AIRRE MASEBEAER2010
FAAVBHNBRHE 2 2 R
HE B ERRG - EREETE

HKFRS | (Revised)
HKFRS |

(Amendment)
HKFRS 2

(Amendment)
HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(FRIC) - Int 14

(Amendment)

HK(FRIC) - Int 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 18

HK(FRIC) - It 19

HKFRSs
(Amendments)
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First-time Adoption of HKFRS

Additional Exemptions
for First-time Adopters

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

Related Party Disclosures
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
Classification of Right Issues
Eligible Hedged ftems
Business Combinations

Financial Instruments

Prepaym